


From:
To: CMTEDD FOI
Subject: Freedom of Information request
Date: Wednesday, 18 November 2020 12:07:09 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the ACT Government. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Please find online enquiry details below.  Please ensure this enquiry is responded to within
fourteen working days.

Your details

All fields are optional, however an email address OR full postal address must be
provided for us to process your request. An email address and telephone contact
number will assist us to contact you quickly if we need to discuss your request.
Title:
First Name:
Last Name:
Business/Organisation:
Address:
Suburb:
Postcode:
State/Territory:
Phone/mobile:
Email address:
Request for information

(Please provide as much detail as possible, for example subject matter and relevant
dates, and also provide details of documents that you are not interested in.)

Under the Freedom of
Information Act 2016 I
want to access the
following document/s
(*required field):

ACT Government acquired Salesforce platform for it's ACT
digital account services by the Office of the Chief Digital Officer.
Please provide any documentary evidence such as the Business
Case, the Procurement Plan Minute, the Tender Evaluation Report
or the approval of the Tender Evaluation Report or others that
demonstrates an open tender process had been exercised. If it
wasn't an open tender, please provide any documents that justify
the reason why the open tender wasn't an option.

I do not want to access
the following
documents in relation
to my request::

Any personal information or confidential texts can be masked or
deleted from the documents.

Thank you.
Freedom of Information Coordinator





I have decided to grant access in full to eight documents and partial access to five 
documents relevant to your request. I have decided to refuse access to seven documents 
as I consider them to be: 

• contrary to the public interest information under schedule 1; or 
• information that would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest to disclose 

under the test set out in section 17 of the Act. 
 
My access decisions are detailed further in the following statement of reasons and the 
documents released to you are provided as Attachment B to this letter. 

In accordance with section 54(2) of the Act a statement of reasons outlining my decisions 
is below.  

Statement of Reasons  

In reaching my access decisions, I have taken the following into account: 

• the Act; 
• the content of the documents that fall within the scope of your request. 

Exemption claimed  

My reasons for deciding not to grant access to the identified documents and components 
of these documents are as follows: 

Information that would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest to disclose under 
the test set out in section 17 of the Act 

Public Interest 

The Act has a presumption in favour of disclosure. As a decision maker I am required to 
decide where, on balance, public interests lies. As part of this process I must consider 
factors favouring disclosure and non-disclosure. 

In Hogan v Hinch (2011) 243 CLR 506, [31] French CJ stated that when ‘used in a statute, 
the term [public interest] derives its content from “the subject matter and the scope and 
purpose” of the enactment in which it appears’. Section 17(1) of the Act sets out the test, 
to be applied to determine whether disclosure of information would be contrary to the 
public interest. These factors are found in subsection 17(2) and Schedule 2 of the Act.  

Taking into consideration the information contained in the documents found to be within 
the scope of your request, I have identified that the following public interest factors are 
relevant to determine if release of the information contained within these documents is 
within the ‘public interest’. 

Factors favouring disclosure in the public interest: 

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following: 

(xiii) contribute to the administration of justice generally, including procedural 
fairness 



Having considered the factor above, I consider that the release of these documents may 
contribute to the administration of justice generally, including procedural fairness by 
allowing you to have a record of the communications and decision-making process behind 
the investigation. I am satisfied that this factor favouring disclosure carries some weight. 
However, this factor is to be balanced against the factors favouring non-disclosure. 

Factors favouring nondisclosure in the public interest: 

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following: 

x) prejudice intergovernmental relations; 

When considering the documents and factors in favour of non-disclosure, I have 
considered that the release of the documents could prejudice intergovernmental 
relations. The documents identified provide details of confidential information shared 
between the ACT Government and other state governments. I am satisfied that the 
release of the documents could prejudice intergovernmental relations and the 
Directorate’s ability to obtain confidential information by impairing the future flow of 
information between the ACT and interstate governments. I am satisfied that all factors 
favouring non-disclosure carry very significant weight. 

(xii) prejudice an agency’s ability to obtain confidential information. 

An agreement to treat documents as confidential does not need to be formal. A general 
understanding that communications of a particular nature will be treated in confidence 
will suffice. The understanding of confidentiality may be inferred from the circumstances 
in which the communication occurred, including the relationship between the parties and 
the nature of the information communicated. 

Having applied the test outlined in section 17 of the Act and deciding that release of 
confidential information contained in the documents is not in the public interest to 
release, I have chosen to redact this specific information in accordance with section 50(2). 
Noting the pro-disclosure intent of the Act, I am satisfied that redacting only the 
information that I believe is not in the public interest to release will ensure that the intent 
of the Act is met and will provide you with access to the majority of the information held 
by CMTEDD within the scope of your request.  

Contrary to the public interest information under schedule 1 of the Act 

Nine  documents that have been identified as being within the scope of your request are 
either fully (documents 14-20 in the attached Schedule) or partially (documents 3 and 5 in 
the attached Schedule) composed of information that is considered to be contrary to the 
public interest information under section 1.2 of Schedule 1 of the Act as it is information 
that is deemed privileged under Legal Professional Privilege. This information can only be 
released if the parties involved agree to waive that privilege. The parties have not waived 
privilege. 

 

 



Charges 

Pursuant to Freedom of Information (Fees) Determination 2018 processing charges are 
applicable for this request because the total number of pages to be released to you exceeds 
the charging threshold of 50 pages. However, the charges have been waived in accordance 
with section 107(2)(b) of the Act. 

Online publishing – Disclosure Log 

Under section 28 of the Act, CMTEDD maintains an online record of access applications 
called a disclosure log. Your original access application, my decision and documents 
released to you in response to your access application will be published in the CMTEDD 
disclosure log after three working days after the date of my decision. Your personal 
contact details will not be published. 

You may view CMTEDD disclosure log at 
https://www.cmtedd.act.gov.au/functions/foi/disclosure-log-2020. 

Ombudsman Review 

My decision on your access request is a reviewable decision as identified in Schedule 3 of 
the Act. You have the right to seek Ombudsman review of this outcome under section 73 
of the Act within 20 working days from the day that my decision is published in CMTEDD 
disclosure log, or a longer period allowed by the Ombudsman.   
 

We recommend using this form Applying for an Ombudsman Review to ensure you 
provide all of the required information.  Alternatively, you may write to the Ombudsman 
at:  
 

The ACT Ombudsman 
GPO Box 442 
CANBERRA ACT 2601 

Via email: actfoi@ombudsman.gov.au  

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal (ACAT) Review 

Under section 84 of the Act, if a decision is made under section 82(1) on an Ombudsman 
review, you may apply to the ACAT for review of the Ombudsman decision. Further 
information may be obtained from the ACAT at:  

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal 
Level 4, 1 Moore St 
GPO Box 370 
Canberra City ACT 2601  
Telephone: (02) 6207 1740  
http://www.acat.act.gov.au/ 
  



Should you have any queries in relation to your request please contact me by telephone 
on 6207 7754 or email CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au.  

Yours sincerely 
 
 

 
Philip Dachs 
Information Officer 
Information Access Team 
Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate 

16 December 2020 
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Subject: FW: i-Connect program – Customer Identity Management Service (Strategic Review)

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Althorp, Vanessa" <Vanessa.Althorp@act.gov.au> 
Date: 19 July 2017 at 12:32:13 pm AEST 
To: "Purser, Dave" <Dave.Purser@act.gov.au> 
Cc: "Doran, Karen" <Karen.Doran@act.gov.au>, "Cumming, Jon" <Jon.Cumming@act.gov.au> 
Subject: i‐Connect program – Customer Identity Management Service (Strategic Review) 

Hi Dave, 

You are the nominated contact officer for the above procurement.  Thank you for the proposal 
presented to the Board on the 11th July 2017.   

The Board noted the presentation from the proponents, providing background and context for 
the procurement approach: 

a. The original procurement strategy is no longer fit for purpose
b. A solution needs to be in place by the end of 2017 to ensure a WHOG approach, in

particular a technical solution is needed by September 2017 to meet  Education’s
project timelines

c. Going out to market will impact on timing of delivery of product

The Board suggested to the proponent that they 

d. Consider the importance of a clear scope of works and detailed technical
specifications to define the product/output expectations

e. Consider the basis for cost allocation to Directorates (pay on usage) and
communication of this approach

f. Include further evidence that a single select provides value for money and other
benefits

g. Include appropriate exit clauses in contract

The Board noted the Chief Digital Officer will bring the RFT to the Board for Stage Two. 

Should you require clarification about this message, please contact me.  If you wish to speak with a 
Board member about this decision, please contact Ms Karen Doran (Chair). 

NOTE:  It is the responsibility of the Project Officer to: 

 Ensure that you are familiar with the Part 3 Notifiable Contracts requirements of the Government Procurement Act 2001 
including Section 26 Meaning of notifiable amendment, Division 3.3 Availability of notifiable contracts, and Division 3.4 on 
Confidential Text, and have planned to include the required information on the Contracts Register within 21 days after the 
contract is made.  Refer to Procurement Circular PC16 Notifiable and Reportable Contracts at 
http://www.procurement.act.gov.au/About/procurement_circulars and the Contracts Register at 
http://www.procurement.act.gov.au/contracts  

 Seek clarification immediately from the sender on the meaning of this message, if not absolutely clear;
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 Advise all appropriate staff associated with the project of the Board's decision and any additional actions resultant from this 
advice; 

 Should the process outlined above not commence within 3 months of this notice, provide a revised timetable; 
 Complete all actions associated with this decision; and 
  
  
  
Active Certification Officer 
Phone: +61 2 6207 7352 | 
Procurement and Capital Works | Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT 
Government  
Macarthur House, Level 2 Annex, 12 Wattle Street Lyneham ACT 2602 |GPO Box 818 Dickson ACT 2602 | www.act.gov.au 
Please consider the environment before printing this email. If printing is necessary, print double‐sided and black and white.  
  
  



From: Colussi, David
To: Glenn Powell @synergygroup.net.au>; Smith, TraceyL
Subject: FW: i-Connect program – Customer Identity Management Service (Strategic Review) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Friday, 15 September 2017 9:23:32 AM

 
 
Regards David
 

From: Colussi, David 
Sent: Friday, 15 September 2017 9:23 AM
To: Whitten, Meredith <Meredith.Whitten@act.gov.au>; Cumming, Jon
<Jon.Cumming@act.gov.au>
Cc: Althorp, Vanessa <Vanessa.Althorp@act.gov.au>
Subject: RE: i-Connect program – Customer Identity Management Service (Strategic Review)
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
 
Thanks Meredith
 
Just to confirm I am on the same page:
 
We will do the second pass out of session and provide:

1. The single select minute updated to include the feedback of our meeting on Tuesday
2. The RFQ documentation requested in the highlighted string below

 
Couple of questions:
Is there anything else I need to provide?

Can I relinquish the slot at GBP we have scheduled for 9am this coming Tuesday (19th)?  
 
Thanks for driving the process on for us. Much appreciated.
Regards David
 

From: Whitten, Meredith 
Sent: Thursday, 14 September 2017 10:26 PM
To: Cumming, Jon <Jon.Cumming@act.gov.au>; Colussi, David <David.Colussi@act.gov.au>
Cc: Althorp, Vanessa <Vanessa.Althorp@act.gov.au>
Subject: RE: i-Connect program – Customer Identity Management Service (Strategic Review)
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
 
Hi Jon
 
The Board was addressing the current proposal for a second pass.
Very happy for you to send through the single select documentation for the Board to
consider.
I will see if we can do that out of session.
 
Many thanks



 
 
Meredith Whitten | Deputy Director-General |
Phone 620 70384 | Mobile 0419 426 308
Business Services Division | Education Directorate | ACT Government
Level 1 Annex 220 Northbourne Avenue Braddon ACT 2601 | GPO Box 158 Canberra  ACT 2601 |
www.act.gov.au |www.det.act.gov.au | Facebook | Twitter | Pinterest | LinkedIn | Google+

 
 

Out of scope



Out of scope



Out of scope



From: Colussi, David
To: Russell Baker @iconnectdigital.net>; Glenn Powell @synergygroup.net.au>; Corby,

Leila; Smith, TraceyL
Subject: FW: I-connect [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED, DLM=For-Official-Use-Only]
Date: Tuesday, 26 September 2017 1:03:37 PM
Attachments: image003.emz

image004.png

 
 

From: Althorp, Vanessa 
Sent: Friday, 22 September 2017 12:09 PM
To: Colussi, David <David.Colussi@act.gov.au>
Cc: Whitten, Meredith <Meredith.Whitten@act.gov.au>; Bailey, Kylie <Kylie.Bailey@act.gov.au>;
Cumming, Jon <Jon.Cumming@act.gov.au>
Subject: I-connect
 
Hi David,
 
You are the nominated contact for the above procurement.  Thank you for the proposal

presented to the Board on the 19th September 2017.  
 
The Board noted the presentation from the proponents, providing background and context for
the procurement approach:

a)      The timing of this procurement is imperative to keep Directorates engaged

b)      A  clearer scope of works and detailed technical specifications has been included 
to define the product/output expectations

d)      The risks are being managed through the Project Board

The Board suggested to the proponent

a.       Liaise with Goods & Services;

The Board asked for the risk plan to be provided to them.

The Board endorsed the Chief Digital Officer proposing a single select to The Head of Service to
engage Saleforce for a period of three years to the value of $.099 million.

 
 
Should you require clarification about this message, please contact me.  If you wish to speak with
a Board member about this decision, please contact Ms Meredith Whitten (A/g Chair).

 
 

NOTE:  It is the responsibility of the Project Officer to:
·                     Ensure that you are familiar with the Part 3 Notifiable Contracts requirements of the Government Procurement Act 2001

including Section 26 Meaning of notifiable amendment, Division 3.3 Availability of notifiable contracts, and Division 3.4 on

Sch 1 1.2

Sch 1 1.2

Sch 2.2(a)(ii)Sch 2.2(a)(ii)



Confidential Text, and have planned to include the required information on the Contracts Register within 21 days after
the contract is made.  Refer to Procurement Circular PC16 Notifiable and Reportable Contracts at
http://www.procurement.act.gov.au/About/procurement_circulars and the Contracts Register at
http://www.procurement.act.gov.au/contracts  

·                     Seek clarification immediately from the sender on the meaning of this message, if not absolutely clear;
·                     Advise all appropriate staff associated with the project of the Board's decision and any additional actions resultant from

this advice;
·                     Should the process outlined above not commence within 3 months of this notice, provide a revised timetable;
·                     Complete all actions associated with this decision; and

 
 
Thanks
Vanessa
 
 













         

             
          
          

      

        

         
 

            
   

             
         

        

         
          

         

            
         

           
         

            
      

           
             

           
             

          
       

             
           

            
              

           
            

        

               
           

          

               

    

  









 
 

  
    
 

  

 
 
 

 

             
             

             

             
           

          
     

            
           
         

           
          
         
          

          
          

     

 

 

           
         

             
             

          
           

           
       

            

           
          

       

               

       

             
             
               
          

               
   

   

 

               
            

    

 



              
 

             
            

 

           
     

           
  

              
           
          

 

 

             
      

           
                 

           
     

             

  

             
      

             
    

             
  

       

           

              
            

            
          

          
         

             
        

 





           
        

       
          

              
            

           
              
 

    

              
            

           
            

           
        

     
               

    

            

           
          

            
        

            
   

 

  

 

  

               

 

      

              
              

              
             

 



           
         

 

    

        

  

       

   

  



       

               
               

        

     
  

            

       
        

          

   

 
 

            

           
       

    

               
   

     

 
       

            

 

       

 
     

  

 



  

   





      

 

 
              

              

              

             

                

                  

                     

                

                    

    

  
                 

        

               

             

              

            

               

   

               

                

              

               

  

                  

                 

                

                  

                  

             

               

                 

                

                   

          

  
      

        



      

         

      

     
                   

 

                 

                

                

            

  

                

               

              

              

                  

      

                 

               

                 

                   

  

                 

              

             

               

                   

                

                

              

                  

                  

                 

          

             

            

              

             

            

                

                 

        



      

                 

  

        

 
               

 

                 

          

           

              

      

                 

               

           

               

               

              

                  

                  

  

                  

             

             

               

    

               

             

                      

  

              

            

                

             

               

           

 

              

   

        



      

            

              

   

                

              

                 

     

              

    

            

       

   

                  

             

             

              

     

             

            

               

    

               

              

             

     

  

             

               

 

                

                

               

   

                 

              

 

   
              

                   

        



      

               

        

                    

              

  

                 

               

        

               

              

                  

                   

                 

  

                

               

                

              

               

              

                

                  

               

               

            

   

                

               

               

               

                 

            

               

            

                   

              

                 

               

    

                 

                

        

        



      

 
                    

              

                

               

               

                  

                 

               

              

         

      

               

              

              

                 

        

                  

                 

              

           

    

                

               

          

               

                

                 

         

            

              

                  

                 

           

                  

               

              

             

             

        



      

 
              

              

               

            

    

          

                

   

               

              

   

              

         

           

     

   

         

           

              

   

             

            

    

              

             

 

           

               

       

            

          

 

              

            

               

       

              

           

 

        



      

               

    

            

             

         

             

            

           

             

   

    

                 

         

   

                

             

              

       

 
                 

              

     

     

                 

                   

                   

              

              

                

              

              

               

               

            

               

         

                

              

                  

 

        



      

             

          

    

          

              

             

       

             

             

              

      

                  

                  

                

              

           

      

                

               

                 

                  

 

                  

          

              

          

       

                

 

      

             

                    

               

       

   

        

         

             

            

        



      

              

        

               

              

               

              

     

                

            

              

                 

             

     

         

                 

                

              

        

               

                 

            

              

              

 

                

               

                

                 

               

           

 

                

                 

                 

         

                 

                 

            

        



      

            

            

              

                 

            

     

             

             

           

              

          

        

             

             

              

                

            

               

               

            

     

           

              

              

            

              

           

            

           

             

           

                   

                 

    

             

                 

                   

                   

 
               

               

                   

        



      

                

              

              

   

  

               

             

            

   

    

    

               

 

               

            

 

                

                  

       

            

              

             

          

  

              

      

              

         

               

 

   

                

     

  

     

               

 

            

 

   

        



      

                  

              

              

             

          

 

  
             

       

       

            

 
      

 

      

 

  
                

               

          

    
               

               

                

               

              

                

    

                

                 

               

              

                

       

        



      

               

               

    

        



  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 





         

 

 

            

            

          

              

                 

                

                

             

                

                

                  

        

  
                

                 

             

                   

        

                 

                

                

              

             

              

              

            

                 

        

               

    

                  

             

              

               

              

               

    

        



         

                 

             

         

  
                 

  

              

          

              

               

          

              

   

                

                  

 

               

  

   

  
                

             

              

    

                  

                

              

              

                  

    

              

               

     

             

        

    

            

         

        



         

         

       

               

 

  
              

         

              

            

                 

             

          

                

   

                

   

                

 

 
  

               

             

     

             

             

             

              

             

   

               

         

              

           

            

     

              

          

               

   

        



         

             

             

        

 

               

 

               

          

               

             

     

              

        

              

        

               

   

  

                

   

             

            

            

             

   

              

          

          

          

      

             

    

  

                

            

            

              

          

      

        







         

          

           

         

                

               

              

             

    

              

             

             

           

        

                

                

            

          

       

               

         

             

            

              

         

    
                 

              

    

              

             

               

               

            

 

               

                 

               

           

 

        



         

  
      

    

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

                  

                

                

                

               

            

               

                  

             

    

  

              

                  

            

              

       

                

             

                

                 

              

      

    

               

              

         

              

             

              

            

       

        



         

               

             

               

               

              

            

        

   

                

               

              

             

            

                 

               

              

              

              

   

               

               

       

                

         

           

               

                   

             

              

             

         

        



         

  

   
          

 

  
     

   
       

 
     

   
    
   

   
   

  

      

    

     

  
  
  

 
 

             

                  

              

            

           

               

                

                

        

  

             

                 

         

 

               

                 

            

            

     

          



         

               

              

                 

        

                  

                 

 

   
          

 

  

  

  
   

  

 
  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  
  

  
  

 
 

  
  

              

            

                  

                

          

            

             

     

             

    

          







         

            

    

            

 

             

              

             

        

 

            

                  

                

             

         

 

              

  

             

               

               

             

               

        

               

              

               

                 

             

        

 

             

                

                

               

        

        





         

              

     

 

         

                 

               

              

            

 

              

               

                 

              

     

         

               

            

           

               

        

 

              

                

                

             

                 

   

      

              

               

        





         

           

 

              

                

                 

            

                 

                  

         

 

             

 

             

           

             

           

      

 

                

 

               

             

               

       

            

               

               

             

                

  

 

            

                

              

             

                  

           

        





         

               

               

                  

              

                  

        

       

                

             

                   

          

 

      

             

                 

                

              

     

          

                

              

              

               

        

 

         

                

               

              

                  

         

          

             

                

                 

               

         

        





         

               

             

      

                 

                  

               

                 

              

      

 

        

              

              

               

                

            

         

                

                 

             

 

       

                

                 

             

              

          

       

               

               

                 

        





         

            

                  

             

               

                

                

                

         

 

         

                 

              

              

            

      

                 

             

              

               

                

    

 

            

                  

                

                  

               

                

          

            

                  

                  

                  

              

               

      

        





         

             

              

     

         

               

                

                    

         

 

      

             

                 

                  

                 

 

       

                

                   

                   

   

 

      

                 

                  

             

             

             

       

                 

             

             

               

 

  
        

         

        



         

 
      

 

      

 

  
                

               

          

    
               

               

                

               

              

                

    

                

                 

               

              

                

       

               

               

    

        



  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 



 

 

  

  
 

          
 

      
     

 
          

             
              

   

   
               

               

  
               

              
          
             

              
              

                 
    

              
             

              
           

              
           

         
              

           
   

          

             
               

    



   

              
            

   

               
               

               
            

           

            
            

            
            

            
             

           
             

   

            
              

           
             

             
            

               
          

          

                
            

            

             
             

               
 

  
             

    





   

            
          

               
                

 

              

 

 

              

                  
            
 

           
             

            

              

           
        

              
              

      

               
            

 

             

                
                 

             
               

             

 

          
           

          

             
             

           
 

               
          

    



   

             
              

             

 

            
                  
   

              
               
             

               
            

               
               

               
                

    

  

                 
                

                
             

               

            
            

               
   

 

        

             
           

                

            
         

            
        

 

                 

              
  

    



   

              
             
     

                 
                

     

                  
            

               
        

  

                
             

           
         

             
  

 

         

            
          

             
           

           

           
        

               

           

              
    

 

              
              

                
        

             
                

              

           
      

    



   

                
 

 

              
               

             
           

   

 

              
  

             
             

              
            
          

              
             

  

 

                 
           

                
       

                
                  
            

             
  

 

               

             
           

            
           

 

            
     

              
       

    



   

                

   

             

      

 

                   
               

                 
   

                
                

  

             
                

              

               
   

 

            
           

           
 

 

              
             

                
     

           
      

               
            

           
    

             
             

 

           
           

        

              
        

    



   

                
               

   

             
             

            

           

             
              

           
 

 

              
           

               
            

              
        

 

              
                
                

      

             
     

             
     

           
       

          
           

 

             
                

          

           

            
           

       

    



   

             
                

   

                 
              

 

 

           
             

         
           

          

            

 

            
             
      

               
           
 

           
      

               
         

 

             
                

        

        

               
             

           
               

                 
    

 

           
            

         
          

 
    



   

              
          

             
            

    

             
           

              
             

             
  

 

            
              

           

              
          

             
           

          

              
 

            
 

  

              

            
             

             
              

              
            

               
                

 

 

             
            

      

             

     



   

             

           

            

              
        

 

              

          

    

           

               
                

          

          

  

          

            

               

   

 

               

            

              

             

           

             

       

                

               

       

               

      

 

              

          

               
     

             
               

 

    



   

              

 

              
             

            

             
            

  

 

              
              

          

           
         

           

        

            
             

      

 

               
   

            
               

            

              
     

            
             

            
      

  

            
            

             
           

           
           

  

 

    



   

               

             

        

            
              

      

                

             

            
        

               

               

 

            

 

                

        

             

                

   

               

              

    

                

                

                

                    

              

 

  

 

             

               

    

              

            

   

    

    



   

                
     

                 
              

   

              
           

               
            

            
             

  

            

            

             
  

                

     

      

           

            

   

             
            

  

            
             

     

    

               
               

                
             

 

           

   

                
       

    



   

             
                 

                 
     

  

   

   

            

           
             

               
   

              
          

             
         

              
              

       

       

  

      

  

    

          
  

            
 

    

       

    

       

  

         

  

         

    



 

  

  

     

 

  

           

  

            
             

  

  

   

               
     

         

  

              
          

          

            

  

            
           

               

             
        

  

             
             

             
                

            
 

    

         

           

  

    



 

    

   

  

           
           

 

 

                

    

       

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

 

    

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

             
      

                   

        

  

         
        

               
        

  

    



   

               
            
             

   

             
               

           
               

   

              
       

  

          

           

   

       

  

            

       

        

 

     

    

       

  

        

      

           
     

  

       

 

   

   

    



 

  

  

   

  

  

 

  

    

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

              
              

            
            

      

 

            
               

               
            

              
              

 

             
                 

             
                 

                  
               

  

                
              

            
                

    



   

                
               

              

 

            
               

            
    

               
                
                

                 
              
           

            
            

          

           
             

            
           

           
 

             
     

              
           

              
   

          
             

          
              

    

            
                 

           
              

            

  

    



   

            

             

           

                

              
 

 

              

              

      

                 
               

                

               
            

             
              

              

                

  

               

               

               
                

              

          

               

            
               

              

                 

               

             

               

       

              

              

                

 

            
               

               

    



   

                

               
            

 

                 
              

             
           

           

    

              
              

              

              

    

               

        

              

 

              
      

           

  

       

  

                

            

                   
              

                 

                

               

              
             

            

                

             

    

 

    



   

              

            
                
             

                
             

                
               

           

          

  

                

           
           

              

 

          

             

             

           
               

              
          

         
        

              
          

             
           

             

       

              
              

                 
     

          

          

              
                

       

    



   

     

                

         

   

        

         

             

             

   

               

        

             

       

         

         

                

               

             

            

             

 

 

                 

 

          

              

                 

             

              

      

              

              

              

              

             

              

            

            

            

    



   

              
               
             

               

    

            
               

             

                 
      

      

              
            

             
              

             
  

               
             
             

                
                

               
             

  

             
                

          
            

               
              

           

  

           
            

             
            

               
             

              
                 
    

    



   

           
              

             
           

               
            

         

             

       

            
             

  

     

         
      

        

   

              

            

               

               
                 
               

      

                 
               
      

             
    

      

     

         

             
      

  
                 
    

    



   

              

               

 

               
                

              

       

              

             
               
             

               

            

            

              

          

                  

             

               

        

            

            

       

            

               

               
            

  

                 
             

                

           
           

           

            
             

             

                  

                
              

           

                 
                

    



   

              
               

           
      

              

              
           

                  
                   
                   

        

                 
        

 
           

   

         

          

   

   

              
            

             
    

            

               
               
            

             
            

       

           
           

            

             
             

             
                

           

    





   

                   

                 

                   

        

               

                 
                

               

              
               

             

                  
                   

                 

                
                

             

  

  

  

  

       

  

   

   

   

    

















                

        

              

                   

                

   

               

               

                  

                

                  

    

 

          

         

                 

               

  

            

 

              

 

           

              

   

                

    

               

     

 

 

   

  

  

                

   

      

              

         

               

           

 





  
     













  
     



 
 

  
  

 
  

   

 
 



  
                  

    

      

     

              

                      
                   

           

    

   

    

  

     

                    
                
   



    
      

               
          

       

              
            

       
                  

                  
 

                 
  

       



  
 

   
     

     
 

 
   

  
   

  

   
   
  

   
    

    
  

    

  
   

    
     

                
      

       



  
 

          

         

              

 

           

                  

 

              

                     
   

 

                   

             

       



    
                

           

                

              

 

           

                 

                

         

             

           

       



    
           

            
  

             

           

         

               
  

       

              

           

       



    

       

   
                  

          

    
                

          

               
    

     
               

         

                 
 

                  

       



 
 

 

 
  

   
   
    

  
 



  
    

           

  

           

       

   

                 

            

     

                 

                

              

                      
 

   

                          
             

                    
           

       



  
     

         

                

            

  

                
    

                

     

                 
     

   

                 

                

        

    

                  
               

       



    
                  

             
    

               

                     
                

                
     

               

               
              

               

                   
                  

     

             

                
 

       



    
             

         

                 

                    
         

            

               

         

                     

                

                  

            

                 

              

                

          

       









   

  

 

 

  
 

 
 
 

                
            

             

   

             
           
           
          

        

    

     

              

          

       

             

        

           
         

      

           
             

          
  

       
 
           

            
          

            
         

      

  

         

        

        
            
             

             

       



   

         
 

            
   

       

          
  

     

            
     

              
      

              

          
           

     

            
           

    

      

             
           

  

         
             

        

            
          

     

             

               
           

           
           
         

            
         

           
         

         
         
           

            
             
            

        



   

           
          

  

       

          

 

   

      
  

         
  

         
 

        
 

        
  

        
  

         
    

        
    

  

       
  

 
 

    
 

    

   

 
 

    

        



   

        

      
 

        

         
 

             
          

           
           

             
    

        




